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FILED

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT . 2 1L
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORI];&' THAR IS PHI2: |

JACKSONVILLE DIVISION ¢ £g, US DISTRIET COURT
W L DISTRIET OF FLORIDA

DEBRA HOWARD, on behalf of herself JACKSORVILLE DISTRICT
and all similarly-situated individuals,
Plaintiffs,
V. Case No.: 5: \—1’C\f-— ?)O?) - j" ?quEs ‘

NCB MANAGEMENT SERVICS, INC.,

and P2 VERIFICATIONS SERVICES, LLC
d/b/a GLOBAL VERIFICATION NETWORK,
as successor to REDRIDGE VERIFICATION
SERVICES, LLC,

Defendants.
/

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff, DEBRA HOWARD, by and through undersigned counsel, on behalf of herself
and the Putative Classes set forth below, files the following Class Action Complaint against
Defendants, NCB MANAGEMENT SERVICS, INC., and P2 VERIFICATIONS SERVICES,
LLC d/b/a GLOBAL VERIFICATION NETWORK, as successor to REDRIDGE
VERIFICATION SERVICES, LLC, (“CRA Defendant”) (“NCB” or “CRA Defendant”
collectively referred to as “Defendants™) under the Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1970, as
amended (“FCRA™), 15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. NCB is the business of providing clients with a full-spectrum of Accounts
Receivable Management (ARM) Solutions, as well as éall center support, and buying and

collecting consumer debt.

2. Plaintiff was hired to work at NCB in Jacksonville, Florida, as a “collector” where
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she remained employed until October of 2016.

3. NCB routinely obtains and uses information in consumer reports to conduct
background checks on prospective and existing employees, and frequently relies on such
information, in whole or in part, as a basis for adverse employment action, such as termination,
reduction of hours, change in position, failure to hire, and failure to promote.

4. While the use of consumer report information for employment purposes is not
per se unlawful, it is subject to strict disclosure and authorization requirements under the FCRA.

5. NCB willfully violated these requirements in multiple ways, thereby
systematically violating Plaintiff’s rights and the rights of other putative class members.

6. NCB violated 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i) by procuring consumer reports on
Plaintiff and other putative class members for employment purposes, without first making proper
disclosures in the format required by the statute. Under this subsection of the FCRA, NCB are
required to disclose to its employees — in a document that consists solely of the disclosure — that
it may obtain a consumer report on them for employment purposes, prior to obtaining a copy of
their consumer report.

7. NCB willfully violated this requirement by failing to provide Plaintiff and other
putative class members with a copy of a document solely consisting of Defendant’s disclosure
that it may obtain a consumer report on any person for employment purposes and also by failing
to provide this disclosure prior to obtaining a copy of the person’s consumer report.

8. The only disclosure NCB provided to Plaintiff, attached as Exhibit A, informed
Plaintiff back in November of 2014 that the consumer report-it was obtaining would come from
“Know It All Intelligence Group,” 1950 Street Rd, Bensalem, P.A. 19020.

9. Rather than actually using “Know It All Intelligence Group,” to procure the
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highly confidential information contained in the consumer reports it obtained on Plaintiff and the
putative class members, NCB instead -- and completely unbeknownst to Plaintiff and those class
members she seeks to represent -- abruptly “switched” consumer reporting agency companies
without informing anyone, or bothering to provide the required stand-alone disclosure or
authorization form mandated by the FCRA before using the “new” consumer reporting agency,
Defendant Redridge.

10. NCB had no right to provide Defendant Redridge with unfettered access to
Plaintiff and the putative class members highly private and confidential information without first
providing the proper disclosure forms and obtaining authorization to do so.

11. In doing so, NCB violated 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i) by procuring
consumer reports on Plaintiff and other putative class members for employment purposes,
without first making proper disclosures in the format required by the statute as to utilizing
Defendant RedRidge to perform the work of a consumer reporting agency for it. Under this
subsection of the FCRA, employers are required to disclose to its employees — in a document that
consists solely of the disclosure — that it may obtain a consumer report on them for employment
purposes prior to obtaining a copy of their consumer report, including who or which entity will
actually be utilized.

12. NCB also violated 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(ii) by .obtaining consumer
reports on Plaintiff and other putative class members without proper authorization due to the fact
that it failed to disclose which consumer reporting agency it would be utilizing and, in fact, named
an altogether different company.

13. The CRA Defendant, RedRidge, violated Section 1681b(b)(1) of the FCRA by

furnishing consumer reports for employment purposes before obtaining the required certifications
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required thereunder.

14. During the relevant time, the CRA Defendant was regularly engaged in the
business of assembling, evaluating and disbursing information concerning consumers for the
purpose of furnishing consumer reports, as defined in 15 U.S.C. Section 1681(d), to third parties,
including the NCB here, for employment purposes. The CRA Defendant RedRidge furnished
consumer reports to concerning Plaintiff and other class members and also furnished consumer
reports to other persons concerning class members for employment purposes.

15. The CRA Defendant violated Section 1681b(b)(1) by furnishing consumer
reports regarding Plaintiff and other class members for employment purposes NCB named herein,
and other employers, without first obtaining reports a certification by each employer as to each
consumer report it furnished to that the employer “has complied with paragraph (2) [of Section
1681b(b)] with respect to the consumer report, and the person will cémply with paragraph (3)
with respect to the consumer report if paragraph (3) [of Section 1681b(b)] becomes applicable.”

16. Based on the foregoing violations, Plaintiff asserts FCRA claims agéinst NCB
on behalf of herself and the putative Class, consisting of NCB’s employees and prospective
employees. In Counts One and Two, Plaintiff asserts a pair of FCRA claims under 15 U.S.C. §§
1681b(b)(2)(A)(i)-(ii) on behalf of a “Improper Disclosure and Authorization Class” against NCB
consisting of:

All NCB employees and job applicants in the United States who were the subject
of a consumer report that was procured by RedRidge, within five years of the
filing of this complaint through the date of final judgment in this action as
required by the FCRA, but who were informed NCB would actually be obtaining
the report from some other consumer reporting agency.

17.  Likewise, under Count III, Plaintiff asserts a class claim under 15 U.S.C. §§
1681b(b)(1) against the CRA Defendant RedRidge consisting of a “Failure to Obtain

Certification Class” defined as:
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All persons residing in the United States as to whom RedRdidge furnished
consumer reports for employment purposes, within the period prescribed by
FCRA, 15 U.S.C. §1681p, without first obtaining from the person to whom
RedRdidge furnished such consumer report a certification that such person

had complied with its obligations under Section 1681b(b)(2) as to the subject

of the consumer report.

18.  On behalf of herself and the Putative Class, Plaintiff seeks statutory damages, costs

and attorneys’ fees, equitable relief, and other appropriate relief under the FCRA.

THE PARTIFES

19. Plaintiff began her employment with Defendant in December 2014 as a collection

representative, and is a member of the Putative Classes defined herein.

20. Defendant NCB is a Florida corporation with its principal place of business in

Trevose, Pennsylvania, and is licensed to and doing business within this District.

21. Defendant RedRidge is licensed to and doing business within this District. Its
principal place of business is Palatine, Illinois and appears to now be doing business under the

name “Global Verification Network.”

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

22. This Court has federal question jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s FCRA claims under
28 U.S.C. § 1331. This Court also has subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s claims under the

FCRA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681n and 1681p.

23. Plaintiff resides in Jacksonville, Florida, and worked for Defendant in in the
Middle District. A substantial part of Plaintiff’s claims arose in this District. Venue is proper in
the Middle District because the majority of the events giving rise to these claims occurred in this

District.
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Background Checks

- 24, NCB conduct background checks on the majority of their job applicants as part
of a standard screening process. In addition, NCB also conduct background checks on existing
employees from time to time during the course of their employment.

25. NCB does not perform these background checks in-house. Rather, NCB relies
on outside consumer reporting firms to obtain this information and send the resulting reports back
to Defendant. In this case, NCB paid Defendant RedRidge to procure a consumer report on
Plaintiff and the putative class members.

26. These reports constitute “consumer reports” within the meaning of the FCRA.
RedRidge’s search into Plaintiff’s character and general reputation included an address search
dating back nearly a decade, a Social Security Validation, a search of county criminal databases,
including a county, federal, and national criminal index search. Plaintiff’s criminal records were
searched over the last ten years, and his Social Security number verified. This information was

compiled by RedRidge into a condensed four-page consumer reported and given to NCB on June

16, 2016.
FCRA Violations Relating to the Class
217. NCB procured consumer report information on Plaintiff in violation of the
FCRA.
28. Under the FCRA, it is unlawful to procure a consumer report or cause a

consumer report to be procured for employment purposes, unless:
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a. a clear and conspicuous disclosure has been made in writing to the consumer at any
time before the report is procured or caused to be procured, in a document that
consists solely of the disclosure that a consumer report may be obtained for
employment purposes; and

b. the consumer has authorized the procurement of the consumer report in
writing (which authorization may be made on the document referred to in clause

®)-
15 U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i)-(ii) (emphasis added).

29.  NCB failed to satisfy these disclosure and authorization requirements. Plaintiff
and the putative class members never authorized, nor were they even told, that Defendant RedRidge
would be procuring their consumer reports on behalf of Defendant NCB. Rather, pursuant to the
disclosure form provided by NCB when she was first hired, Plaintiff and the putative class members
were misled into believing that their reports would be pulled by “Know It All Intelligence Group,”
1950 Street Rd, Bensalem, P.A. 19020. Thus, they were left completely unaware that an entirely
different company, Defendant Redridge, was digging through their personal lives and providing
information to Defendant NCB.

30.  To compound the problem, even the disclosure form NCB originally provided to
Plaintiff back in November of 2014 -- that listed the wrong consumer reporting agency -- was not
a stand-alone FCRA disclosure or authorization form. It contains at least the following extraneous
items of information:

a) A false statement information applicants that in order to receive a copy
of their reports, they must make a request “in writing” within an
unspecified reasonable period of time;

b) An acknowledgment that the reports obtained are “all encompassing”
and allegedly allow Know It All Intelligence Group to obtain “from any

organization all manner of consumer reports”;
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c) State law informing consumers of their additional rights under New
York, Minnesota, Oklahoma, and California law; and, worse still,

d) a blanket authorization purporting to allow NCB the following
unlimited release of information from every applicant, including blanket
authorizations for information related to: “any law enforcement agency,
administrator, state or federal agency, institution, school or university
(“public or private”), information bureau, employer, or insurance
company to furnish any and all background information requested by
Know it All Intelligence Group.”

31. This practice violates the plain language of the FCRA, and flies in the face of
unambiguous case law and regulatory guidance from the FTC. NCB willfully disregarded
willfully violated 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A) by procuring consumer report information on
employees without complying with the disclosure and authorization requirements of the FCRA.

Plaintiff’s First Concrete Injury: Invasion of Privacy

32.  Plaintiff and the putative class experienced a concrete injury from Defendant’s
failure to provide the statutorily-required stand-alone disclosure in at least two ways.

33.  First, Defendant invadéd Plaintiff’s right to privacy. Under the FCRA, “a person
may not procure a consumer report, or cause a consumer report to be procured, for employment
purposes with respect to any consumer, unless” it complies with the statutory requirements (i.e.,
disclosure and authorization) set forth in the following subsections: 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2). As
one court put it, “[t]he FCRA makes it unlawful to ‘procure’ a report without first providing the
proper disclosure and receiving the consumer’s written authorization.” Harris v. Home Depot

US.A., Inc., 114 F. Supp. 3d 868, 869 (N.D. Cal. 2015).
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34. Plaintiff’s consumer report contained a wealth of private information which
Defendant had no right to access absent a specific Congressional license to do so. The réport
included, inter alia, Plaintiff’s date of birth, address history, social security number, and
information about her criminal background. By procuring a report containing this private
information without complying with FCRA’s disclosure requirements, Defendant illegally
invaded Plaintiff’s privacy.

Plaintiff’s Second Concrete Injury: Informational Injury

35.  Second, Plaintiff has suffered a concrete informational injury because Defendant
failed to provide Plaintiff with information to which she was entitled by statute. In fact, Defendant
failed to provide Plaintiff with FCRA documentation it claims all applicants are entitled to under
its own application policy, namely a stand-alone FCRA disclosure form.

36.  Pursuant to § 1681b(b)(2), Plaintiff was entitled to receive certain information at a
specific time, namely a disclosure that a consumer report may be procured for employment
purposes in a document consisting solely of the disclosure. Such a disclosure was required to be
provided4to Plaintiff before the consumer report was to be procured. By depriving Plaintiff of this
information, Defendant injured Plaintiff and the putative class members she seeks to represent.
Public Citizen v. U.S. Department of Justice, 491 U.S. 440, 449 (1989); Federal Election
Commission v. Akins, 524 U.S. 11 (1998).

37.  NCB failed to satisfy the requirements of the Disclosure and Authorization Notice
when it procured Plaintiff’s consumer report without providing the proper disclosure under the
FCRA.

38. Similarly, the CRA Defendant violated Section 1681b(b)(1) as to Plaintiff and each

member of the Failure to Obtain Certification Class she seeks to represent. According to Section
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1681b(b)(1)(A), a “consumer reporting agency may furnish a consumer report for employment
purposes only if -- (A) the person who obtains such report from the agency certifies to the agency
that-- (i) the person has complied with paragraph (2) with respect to the consumer report, and the
person will comply with paragraph (3) with respect to the consumer report if paragraph (3)
becomes applicable; and (ii) information from the consumer report will not be used in violation of
any applicable Federal or State equal employment opportunity law or regulation.”

39. By failing to obtain the required specific certification from NCB and other
persons/companies the CRA Defendant furnished consumer reports as to each consumer report
provided before providing the specific consumer report that was the subject of the certification,
the CRA Defendant violated the express requirement of Section 1681(b)(1). In fact, Defendant
RedRidge had no authority to obtain Plaintiff’s consumer report, much less the proper certification
required by Section 1681(b)(1).

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

40. Numerosity: The members of the Putative Classes are so numerous that
joinder of all Class members is impracticable. NCB regularly obtain and uses information in
consumer reports to conduct background checks on prospective employees and existing
employees, and frequently relies on such information, in whole or in part, as a basis for taking
adverse employment action. Plaintiff is informed and believes that during the relevant time
period, a sufficient number of NCB’ employees and prospective employees satisfy the definition
of the Putative Class as to the Employer.

41.  Typicality: Plaintiff’s claims are typical of those of the members of the
Putative Class. Defendants typically uses consumer reports to conduct background checks on

employees and prospective employees. The FCRA violations suffered by Plaintiff are typical

10
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of those suffered by other Putative Class members, and Defendant treated Plaintiff consistent
with other Putative Class members in accordance with its standard policies and practices.

42.  Adequacy: Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the
Putative Class, and has retained counsel experienced in complex class action litigation.

43.  Commonality: Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the
Putative Classes, and predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of
the Putative Classes. These common questions include, but are not limited to:

A. Whether Defendants’ background check practices and/or procedures
comply with the FCRA;

B. Whether NCB violated the FCRA by procuring consumer report
information without making proper disclosures in the format required by
the statute; :

C. Whether the CRA Defendant RedRidge violated the FCRA by procuring
consumer report information without first obtaining the required
certification and/or authorization from those to whom it provided the
reports;

D. Whether Defendants violated the FCRA by procuring consumer report
information based on invalid authorizations;

E. Whether Defendants’ violations of the FCRA were willful; and
F. The proper measure of statutory damages. |
44.  This case is maintainable as a class action because prosecution of actions by or

against individual members of the Putative Classes would result in inconsistent or varying
adjudications and create the risk of incompatible standards of conduct for Defendants. Further,
adjudication of each individual Class members’ claims as separate actions would potentially be
dispositive of the interest of other individuals not a party to such action, thereby impeding their
ability to protect their interests.

45, This case is also maintainable as a class action because Defendants have acted

11
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or refused to act on grounds that apply generally to the Putative Classes, so that final
injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief is appropriate with respect to the Class as
a whole.

46.  Class certification is also appropriate under because questions of law and fact
common to the Putative Classes predominate over any questions affecting only individual
members of the Putative Classes, and also because a class action is superior to other available
methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this litigation.

47. Defendants’ conduct, which is described in this Complaint, stems from common
and uniform policies and practices, resulting in common violations of the FCRA. Members of
the Putative Classes do not have an interest in pursuing separate actions against Defendants,
as the amount of each Class member’s individual claim for damages is small in comparison to the
expense and burden of individual prosecution. Class certification will also obviate the need
for unduly duplicative litigation that might result in inconsistent judgments concerning
Defendants’ practices. Moreover, management of this action as a class action will not present any
foreseeable difficulties. In the interests of justice and judicial efficiency, it would be desirable
to concentrate the litigation of all Putative Class members’ claims in a single action, brought in a
single forum.

48.  Plaintiff intends to send notice to all members of the Putative Class to the extent
required by Rule 23. The names and addresses of the Putative Class members are readily available
from Defendant’s records.

MF EF L
Failure to Make Proper Disclosure in Violation of FCRA
15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i)

49.  Plaintiff alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations in the preceding

12
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paragraphs.

50. In violation of the FCRA, the background check that NCB required the Class to
complete as a condition of their employment does not satisfy the disclosure requirements of 15
U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i), because NCB failed to provide a stand-alone document pertaining to
how the consumer report information would be obtained and utilized as to Defendant RedRidge.

51.  NCB violated the FCRA by procuring consumer reports on Plaintiff and other
Class members without first making proper disclosures in the format required by 15 U.S.C. §
1681b(b)(2)(A)(i).

52.  The foregoing violations were willful. NCB’s purported disclosure, which had
nothing to do with the CRA it ultimately utilized, containing the illegal liability waiver were
executed in November of 2014. At that time a plethora of authority, including both case law and
FTC opinions, existed at the time of Employer Defendant’s violations on this very issue that held
waivers cannot be included in the FCRA forms at issue. Avila v. NOW Health Group, Inc., No.
14-C-1551, 2014 WL 3537825, at *2 (N.D. 11l. July 17, 2014); Singleton v. Domino’s Pizza, LLC,
No. 2012 WL 245965, at *7-9 (D. Md. Jan. 25, 2012); Reardon v. Closetmaid Corp., No. 2:08-cv-
1730, 2013 WL 6231606, at *10-11 (W.D.Pa. Dec. 2, 2013); EEOC v. Video Only, Inc., No. 06-
1362-K1, 2008 WL 2433841, at *11 (D. Or. June 11, 2008); FTC Staff Opinion Letter to H. Roman
Leathers (Sept. 9, 1988).!

53. Employer Defendant’s willful conduct is also reflected by, among other things,
the following facts:

a. NCB had access to legal advice through its own general counsel’s office

and outside employment counsel, and there is no contemporaneous
evidence that it determined that its conduct was lawful;

! Available at http://www fic.gov/policy/advisory-opinions/advisory-opinion-leathers-09-09-98.

13
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b. NCB knew or had reason to know that its conduct was inconsistent with
published FTC guidance interpreting the FCRA and the plain language
of the statute; and

c. Defendant voluntarily ran a risk of violating the law substantially greater
than the risk associated with a reading that was merely careless.

54.  Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to statutory damages of not less than one
hundred Dollars ($100) and not more than one thousand Dollars ($1,000) for each and every
one of these violations under 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(1)(A)? in addition to punitive damages under
15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(2).

55.  Plaintiff and the Class are further entitled to recover their costs and attorneys’

fees, in accordance with 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(3).

15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(ii)

56.  Plaintiff alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations in the preceding
paragraphs.

57.  Defendant violated the FCRA by procuring consumer reports relating to Plaintiff
and other Class members without proper authorization. See 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(ii). The
authorization requirement under 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(ii) follows the disclosure
requirement of § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i) and presupposes that the authorization is based upon a valid
disclosure. “After all, one cannot meaningfully authorize her employer to take an action if she does
not grasp what that action entails.” Burghy v. Dayton Racquet Club, Inc., 695 F. Supp. 2d 689, 699
(8.D. Ohio 2010); see also United States v. DeFries, 129 F.3d 1293, 1307 (D.C. Cir. 1997)
(“[A]uthorization secured ‘without disclosure of . . . material information’ is a nullity.”)

58.  In violation of the FCRA, the background check that NCB required the Class to

complete as a condition of their employment does not satisfy the disclosure requirements of 15

14
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U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i), because NCB failed to provide a stand-alone document pertaining to
how the consumer report information would be obtained and utilized.
59. NCB violated the FCRA by procuring consumer reports on Plaintiff and other
Class members without first making proper disclosures in the format required by 15 U.S.C. §
1681b(b)(2)(A)().
60. NCB’s willful conduct is also reflected by, among other things, the following
facts:
a. NCB had access to legal advice through its own general counsel’s office
and outside employment counsel, and there is no contemporaneous
evidence that it determined that its conduct was lawful;
b. NCB knew or had reason to know that its conduct was inconsistent with
published FTC guidance interpreting the FCRA and the plain language

of the statute; and

c. Defendant voluntarily ran a risk of violating the law substantially greater
than the risk associated with a reading that was merely careless.

61. Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to statutory damages of not less than one
hundred Dollars ($100) and not more than one thousand Dollars ($1,000) for each and every
one of these violations under 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(1)(A), in addition to punitive damages under
15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(2).

62. Plaintiff and the Class are further entitled to recover their costs and attorneys’

fees, in accordance with 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(3).

A Violation of FCRA 15 US.C. § 1681b(b)(1)

63.  Plaintiff alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations in the preceding
paragraphs.

64. The CRA Defendant, RedRidge, violated Section 1681b(b)(1) by furnishing

15
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consumer reports regarding Plaintiff and other class members for employment purposes to NCB
and others without first obtaining from NCB and other persons to whom it furnished such reports
a certification by such person as to each consumer report it furnished to such person that such
person “has complied with paragraph (2) [of Section 1681b(b)] with respect to the consumer
report, and the person will comply with paragraph (3) with respect to the consumer report if
paragraph (3) [of Section 1681b(b)] becomes applicable.” In fact, this would have been an
impossibility as NCB never informed Plaintiff and the putative class members it was using
Defendant RedRidge as its consumer reporting agency.

65.  The foregoing violations were willful. The CRA Defendant acted in deliberate
or reckless disregard of its obligations and the rights of Plaintiffs and other Consumer
Reporting Class members under the FCRA. The CRA Defendant knew or should have known of
its legal obligations under the FCRA. These obligations are well established in both the plain
language of the FCRA and in case law. The CRA Defendant obtained, or had available to it,
substantial written materials informing it of its duties under the FCRA. Any reasonable consumer
reporting agency would know of, or could easily discover, the FCRA’s mandates.

66.  Notably, in 2016 when Plaintiff’s “second” consumer report was pulled, a plethora
of authority, including case law and FCT opinions, existed at the time on 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(1)
that Defendant had access to, or at least should have known about. See, e.g., Kirchner v. Shred-It
USA, Inc., et al., 2014 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 164940 (E.D.C.A: Nov. 25, 2014) (denying consumer
reporting agency motion to dismiss § 1681b(b)(1) claim based on similar allegations made here);
Obabuekiv. IBM, et al., 145 F. Supp. 2d 371, 394-395 (granting summary judgment in Plaintiff’s

favor against consumer reporting agency for failure to comply with certification requirements

16



Case 3:17-cv-00303-BJD-JBT Document 1 Filed 03/15/17 Page 17 of 18 PagelD 17

mandated by § 1681b(b)(1); and Letter from the FTC to Stephen Kilgo dated July 28, 1998.2

67.  Plaintiff and the Failure to Obtain Certification class are entitled to statutory
damages of not less than one hundred Dollars ($100) and not more than one thousand Dollars
($1,000) for each and every one of these violations under 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(1)(A), in addition
to punitive damages under 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(2).

68.  Plaintiff and the Failure to Obtain Certification are further entitled to recover their
costs and attorneys’ fees, in accordance with 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(3).

PRAYER FOR RELIEE

69. WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and the Putative Classes,

prays for relief as follows:
a) Determining that this action may proceed as a class action;

b) Designating Plaintiff as class representative and designating Plaintiff’s
counsel as counsel for the Putative Class;

c) Issuing proper notice to the Putative Class at Defendants’ expense;
d) Declaring that Defendants each committed multiple, separate violations
of the FCRA;

e) Declaring that Defendants acted willfully in deliberate or reckless
disregard of Plaintiff’s rights and its obligations under the FCRA;

) Awarding statutory damages as provided by the FCRA, including punitive
damages;

2) Awarding reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as provided by the FCRA;
and

h) Granting other and further relief, in law or equity, as this Court may deem
appropriate and just.

2 Available at https:/lwww.ftc.gov/policy/advisory-opinions/advisory-opinion-kilgo-07-28-98.

17
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Plaintiff and the Putative Classes demand a trial by jury for all issues so triable.

Dated this ’@day of March, 2017.

Respectfully submitted,

AN

LUIS A. CABASSA

Florida Bar Number: 053643
Direct No.: 813-379-2565
BRANDON J. HILL

Florida Bar Number: 37061
Direct No.: 813-337-7992
WENZEL FENTON CABASSA, P.A.
1110 North Florida Ave., Suite 300
Tampa, Florida 33602

Main No.: 813-224-0431
Facsimile: 813-229-8712

Email: lcabassa@wfclaw.com
Email: bhill@wfclaw.com

Email: twells@wfclaw.com
Email: mk@wfclaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff

18
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NOTICE AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT
[IMPORTANT - PLEASE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING ACKNOWLEDGMENT)

MOTICE REGARDING BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION

MCB Management Services, Inc. may obtain information about you irom a consumer reporting agency for §mployn?enl purposes. Thus,
you miy he the subject of a “‘consumer report” andfor an “invesligalive consumer reporl* which may include tnformaho_n abou't your
characir, general reputation, personal characteristics, driving record, andfor mode of living, and which can involve personal interviews wilh
Soure: Sych 85 your current and past employers, friends, or associates. These reporis may be obtained at any ll!‘l'le' after receipt of your
auihanization and, if you are hired. throughout your employment. You have the fight, upon written request made within a reasonable fima
aiier rex2ipt of this notice, to request disclosure of the nalure and scope of any investigative consumer report. Please be advised Ihat the
nturz and scope of the most common form of investigative onsumer report obtained with regard to applicanis for employment is an
investigation into your education and/or employment hislory conducted by Know It All Intelligence Group, 1950 Street Rd, Bensalem, PA
19020 888-281-9535. The scope of this nolice and authorization is all-encompassing, however, allowing NCB Management Services,
Inc, (o obtain from any outside organization all manner of consumer reports and investigative consumer feports now and, if you are hired,
throughaul the course of your employment to the extent permitted by law. As a result, you should carefully consider whether to exercise
your right to request disclosure of the nature and scope of any invesligative consumer reporl.

New York applicanis or employees only: You have the right to inspect and receive a copy of any investigative

| Consumer report requested by the Employer by contacting Know It All Intelligence Group directly.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND AUTHORIZATION

| acknowledge receipt of the NOTICE REGARDING BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION and A SUMMARY OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE
FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT and certify that | have read and understand both of those documents. | hereby authorize the oblaining of
“consumer reports" and/or “investigative consumer reports”fat any time after receipt of this authorization and, If { am hired, throughout my
employment. To this end, [ hereby authorize, without reser ation, any law enforcement agency, administrator, state or lederal agency,
inslitution. school or university (public or private), informatian service bureau, employer, or insurance company to fumish any and all
background informalion requested by Know It Al Intelligehce Group (www.knowitallgroup.com), another outside organization acting on
behali of NCB Management Services, Inc. itself, ! agree that a facsimile (*fax") or photographic copy of this Authorization shalf be as valid

as the original.

[ Min nesota and Oklahoma applicants or emplovees oni = Please check this box if you would fike to receive &
COpy of a consumer report if one is obtained by the Company. o

'
i

California applicants or employees only: By signing below, you also acknowledge receipt of the NOTICE
REGARDINQ BACKG FSOUN D INVESTIGATION PURSUANT "ro CALIFORNIA LAW. Please check this box if
you would like to receive a copy of an Investigative consumer report or consumer credit report if oneis

l<:E:~tained by the Company atno charge whenever you have a right to receive such a copy-under California
3w, - '

The following is for identification purposes only fo perform the background check and will not be used for any other purpose;

ATy p@,ﬁ;,}){“ e b

DATE

St ATURE OF EMﬁLg‘YEE OR PROSPECTIVE EMPLOYEE

SOCIAL SECURITY NURGER ———
Vo T B e

9?'9 ol Bicth (For Backaround Purposes Only)

Dilvars License Nurmber ™~ ™~ State
Current Address; ~ - T * e - s
LSHANF e iy vy L A} 4y A P I S

/E_t_eyiqns Addresses fLast 10 veace): i .~ ’

TR S A DEM VSMA WO WAV IR g ARFLNE I )
3 T b LIV

Any ollvor names | have bean known by {including maiden name): & 1
g Ong.

—eae e
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